Branxton Heritage
Walk

Maitland Rd, Branxton 1880’s

A Community Initiative by

Branxton Greta Business Chamber
In Collaboration with:

Branxton Tidy Towns Committee

1. No. 31 Maitland Rd
€.1843 Residence

1852 Travellers Arms Inn
1893 Royal Federal Hotel

William Shepherd Snr. built the single-storey lapped
weatherboard cottage to the east with the hipped-iron roof
and Victorian sash windows around 1843, probably as a
family home. It is the oldest remaining building in
Branxton.

It became the “Travellers’ Arms Inn” in 1852 and when the
two-storey addition was built in 1893 it became the Royal
Federal Hotel. This section is a late Victorian asymmetrical
timber house. It has a timber facade with lapped
weatherboard sides and rear, hipped iron roof and brick
chimney. The two-storey bull nose balcony with iron
supports, valance and balustrade is supported with local
iron posts stamped ‘“Made in Morpeth”. The four paned
sash window and French door to the balcony are typical of
Victorian architecture.

An outhouse was built when the inn offered
accommodation and appears to have been used as a “wash
house” with signs of a wood fired copper in one room.

A wine cellar was part of the hotel additions. Over the
years attempts have been made to excavate the fill after
major floods but this work is incomplete.

2. No. 45 Maitland Rd
1929 Commercial Hotel.

The Maitland Mercury reports on the 9" April 1929 that
fire destroyed the original timber two storey Commercial
and four nearby shops. As there was no town water supply,
a gathering of volunteers responded to quell the fire using
private rainwater tanks and wells prior to the arrival of the
East Maitland Fire Engine.

The second Commercial Hotel, the one we see today, was
built in1929 on this new site. Designed by W. H. Pender,
Maitland architect in the “Inter War Striped Classical”
architectural style at a cost of five thousand pounds the
hotel was built by Tooth & Co. It was leased until the
freehold was purchased in 1988.

The current owners are refurbishing the interior, which

remains structurally intact. The 1929 cellar has been
revealed and is being restored as a public space.

e
=g

R AV,

Original Commercial Hotel prior
to 1929.



3. No. 47 Maitland Rd
1937 Hungerford Butcher
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This small and relatively recent building was erected by
Claude Hungerford in 1937 and remained in that family
through three generations.

until sold in 1997 after custody by Hector and then Ron.
Claude sold meat sourced from their slaughter yard in
Pokolbin and from the Upper Hunter saleyards. This meat
was delivered to the butchery by horse and cart over long
distances without refrigeration and then on to Pokolbin and
surrounding the localities.

Under the management of Ron, the last Hungerford owner,
meat was sourced from Maitland or Singleton Saleyards
and slaughtered at the still functioning Kurri Kurri
Abattoir. More recently a delicatessen, offering preserved
cuts to locals, was added to the smokehouse. Smoking days
meant pervasive mouth watering aromas wafted through
town.

Note: Prior to the development of coal mining in the
Lower Hunter, Branxton was an important agricultural
region with farmlands providing much of the produce
supply for this region of the Hunter. Many of the
buildings cited included produce as part of their primary
business activity. We refer you to the Lion’s Club CD, a
compilation of home films reflecting on one of our last
Agricultural Shows in the 1950’s. Contact Branxton
Lions on ...... for a copy.

4. No. 61 Maitland Rd
Circal881.“ D u rPaivate Residence

This Victorian Filigree architectural style residence was
constructed in brick. It features a typical symmetrical
facade with two symmetrically placed chimneys and retains
the original slate roof.

It remained as a private residence through the successive
then Andrew Cooper who built the now demolished
Branxton Butter Factory. Following its sale in 1921, to

Patrick Slattery, the residence remained
ownership by Patrick Slattery and his son.

in private

Between 1881 and today many changes have been made to
this building both internally and externally, however the
original structure remains intact.

i il > I
I } -

(R

5. No. 63 Maitland Rd
Circal930 '“sCr e s wi
Private residence.
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John Bayliss purchased this land in 1853 notably at the
same time as purchasing the land next door — “Dura”.
Precisely who built this residence is not recorded. Older
Branxton locals suggest that it was a Mr Henderson, local
baker, while others suggest that Paul Williams, another
baker who also conducted his businesses across the road at
68 Maitland St. was the builder. Paul Williams purchased
this property in 1934. Alister and Elaine Moss purchased
the residence in 1986 and began extensive restoration work
on this Federation house. Recently this residence has again
changed hands and indications are that it will continue to
be preserved as a heritage landmark.

The Great Depression Shire Relief Works: Sandstone
kerb and gutters in John Rose Avenue and Cesshock
Road from the Royal Federal Hotel past the Anglican
Church are all that remain.

Cessnock Eagle 9 April 1936. Progress Report.

“During the period the number of men employed was
about 2400, distributed in 16 districts and 36 sub-centres.
Eighteen quarries and gravel pits are being worked. The
transport comprises 4 Council lorries, 11 hired lorries, 4
horse teams and 27 single horse carts .....”

Cottage



6. No. 4 John Rose Ave

Circa 1930'"s Horse Tr
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George Bills was born in Brighton, England in 1859. He
migrated in Australia in 1873. In 1882 he opened a bird
dealers shop in Brisbane, where he met and married Annis
Swann who had emigrated from Sheffield, England.
George became a Life Governor of the RSPCA in 1924,

George and Annis had no children, and following the death
of George in 1927; a trust fund was established for some
£70-80,000. One of the purposes of the trust, as set out in
George Bills' will, was to:

"... construct and erect and pay for horse troughs
wherever they may be of the opinion that such horse
troughs are desirable for the relief of horses and other
dumb animals either in Australasia, in the British
Islands or in any other part of the world subject to the
consent of the proper authorities being obtained."

The majority of the troughs were installed in Victoria and
New south Wales between 1930 and 1939. The troughs
were pre-cast concrete with a curved pediment and the
inscription "Donated by Annis & George Bills Australia".

Maitland St. 1955 flood

7. No. 4 John Rose Ave
aJasepthBercini Jnr Memorial

This is an excerpt from the Maitland Mercury 1905.

The Memorial

“At the entrance to the park, the memorial is striking and
elegant in appearance. It consists of red granite, very
beautifully... polished, and rises to a monument... as a

private citizen, and as secretary of the Branxton Progress

Committee, the late Mr Bercini succeeded in doing a vast

amount of good for the town and district. Upon his death,

a movement was initiated with the view of perpetuating in

a fitting manner the name of such a public-spirited
benefactor.

Though physically incapacitated and unable to take a
personal part in public meetings, his facile pen was
always wielded in support of their (Branxton’s) objective,
and it told with greater force than the most fervid
eloquence of their foremost speakers. Intellectually, he
was head and shoulders over all his peers throughout the
district, as his contributions to the press showed, and
when he was forced by his fatal illness to lay down his
pen both town and district became paralysed with grief
for his early demise and for the loss of their guide, their
philosopher and friend............. ?

8. No. 65 Maitland Rd
1939. Bank of NSW & Managers Residence.
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After conducting business at 66 Maitland Road since 1913
the bank purchased this land in 1919 and erected the
current building in 1939. This two-storey red brick building
was erected with a steep tiled roof, dormer windows and
boarded gables at the front and rear.

Architecturally described as Inter-war classical revival it
features a Georgian revival facade using the American
influenced columned portico. The bricks were purchased
from Tamworth.

To accommodate an increased number of staff, extensions
were made in 1985 with a large room attached to the
western side of the building.

The Branxton branch of the Westpac Bank closed its doors
in 1994.
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https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/RSPCA_Australia
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pre-cast_concrete
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pediment

9. No. 72 Maitland Rd
1892.“ Vi ct or
General Store.

i Post Officeiasice ”

This two-storey Vernacular style shop and dwelling of
cream brick with red brick bands and highlights was built
by the Tulloch Bros as a general store in1892. Designed by
J. W. Scobie, it displays a high parapet with a central
pediment decorated with brick and render. Cast iron posts
support both upper and lower verandahs.

In a wooden structure previously on this site from 1871
James Tulloch was the Post Master and his wife Jane
managed the store in the same building. The office was the
small building attached to the western side of the store.
Notably in 1875 a Morse Telegraph office was opened in
Branxton with the call signal of “XN”. The Post Office
continued in these premises until 1913.

During the war years it was used as a billiard salon and SP
betting shop.

The Tulloch brothers were both members of the
Independent Order of Good Templars and the Wesley
Church. Alexander and John rapidly progressed the
business securing local agricultural produce including corn,
hay, butter and eggs and forwarding these to Newcastle. In
1893 John accepted Pokolbin acreage as settlement for debt
and moved in 1898 to establish Tulloch Vineyard.

Jack and Florence Bendeich began their Drapery Business
here in 1946 and purchased the building in 1951. Over the
years alterations & additions have been added to the rear of
the building. The main brick structure is original.

10. No. 70 Maitland Rd
1892. Bakery“ pl ai n &
Confectioners and Residence.

fancy

Joseph Bercini built this two storey timber building in
1892. Mr J. Henderson leased the building and
opened his new business as a plain and fancy baker in
these premises erected specifically for this purpose.
The shop was on the downstairs western side of the
building, with a separate hall entrance from the front
verandah running the length of the house. The office was
located in the front eastern room. His bakery was a small
room built at the back of the building on the eastern
boundary. He later added a coke oven.

In 1923 Paul Williams acquired the building and continued
with the bakery business until his death in 1954 after which
it was owned and operated by Alan Darlington as head
baker. In the 1930’s Paddy Sylvester came to Branxton to
serve his bakery apprenticeship. Paddy left to join the army
when war broke out. He returned to build a much larger
business, which was to supply much of the Hunter with
their famous Sylvester’s dampers.

This bakery was contracted to supply the Greta Army
Camp with up to 3,000 loaves a day. Paddy immediately
added to the old bakehouse with new building additions to
the northern side housing ovens and boilers at a cost of
fifteen thousand pounds. These buildings are now the
Branxton Pet Shop.

Three wells at the rear supplied water. Stables and feed
sheds were built on the Eastern perimeter. Bread was
originally delivered by 2 up-front seated horse carts and 3
stand-on carts.

11. No. 66-68 Maitland Rd
bcr1893PdysrBros Drapery Store.
1923 Original Bank of NSW.

This two-storey brick building in the Victorian, Filigree
architectural style with stucco fagade and iron columns was
built by Chas Hughes in some time after1893 and reflects
the proportions of Victorian Sydney terraced housing. The
iron columns are foundry marked KED.

The building was originally leased by Pryor Bros,
Storekeepers and Drapers who then purchased the property
in 1906. They then leased the property to the Bank of
NSW, who in turn purchased the building in 1923.

The daughters of Paul Williams, baker at 68-70 Maitland
St, Catherine and Marie, purchased this building in 1939.
Since then the building has served many purposes. From
the1950’s as Bob Owens’ Chemist Shop occupying the
front section of this building until they built their new
premises at 74 Maitland St. Other uses have been as a
dressmaking business, medical rooms, gift and fruit shops
and rented residential flats.

In 1985 A.G. Thomas Real Estate purchased the property
where this family business has operated ever since.



12. No. 64 Maitland Rd
1894 Nixon's General Store and Residence

Adam Nixon emigrated from Northern Ireland in 1843. In
the 1860’s he established a “store” and in thel871-72
census was listed as “Dealer”.

A timber building constructed on this site was probably
replaced after the devastating flood of 1893 with the
building you see today. Built in the Vernacular
architectural style this two-storey brick store and residence
displays a gambrel roof and verandah supported by cast
iron columns. Local Ravensfield sandstone was used for
pavement and is the last remaining in Branxton. The
builder was contracted by M/s. Elizabeth Nixon, proprietor.

The original building had an upstairs verandah on the
eastern side (only partially replaced). As with many of
Branxton’s significant buildings No.64 served many
functions in its history. From the original grocery store
(which seemed to be a continuing usage) these ranged from
“Universal Provider” of drapery, boots, crockery,
ironmongery and book keeping in the 1920°s. Through the
20’s to the 30’s it was a pharmacy thereafter, alternating as
grocery, hardware, irrigation, antiques and craft shops
before becoming the current bakery and residence.

13. No. 62 Maitland Rd
c. 1887 Private residence and saddlery
c. 1890 Bank of Australasia

This is building was commissioned by Joseph Bercini Snr.
His daughter Mary and her husband James Frost occupied
the two-storey timber clad residential building. The cast
iron columns were manufactured by Ruetts of West
Maitland.

Charles J. Quigan first occupied the down stairs eastern
front room for his saddlery business. He later moved his
business further towards Anvil Creek and opposite the
Branxton Inn. This room then housed the ‘Bank of
Australasia’.

Mary & James Frost’s daughter Edna continued to live in
the residence, first attending to the needs of her aged
mother. After her marriage to David Watson it continued to
be their family residence up to the present (2017).

Note: Prior to the development of coal mining in the
Lower Hunter, Branxton was an important agricultural
region with farmlands providing much of the produce
supply for this region of the Hunter. Many of the
buildings cited included produce as part of their primary
business activity. We refer you to the Lion’s Club CD, a
compilation of home films reflecting on one of our last
Agricultural Shows in the 1950’s. Contact Branxton
Lionson ...... for a copy.

14. No. 60 Maitland Rd
c. 1887 Residence and Produce Business.

This is another Joseph Bercini building. A traditional two-
storey, Vernacular style brick building that shows a hipped
iron roof and double storey timber verandah under a
separate roof. The upper verandah originally continued
along the front, eastern & western sides of the house. The
eastern side of the downstairs verandah was once enclosed
with wrought iron balustrading.

A large room on the western side of the building was used
as a store and then from 1913 as a Post Office with Mrs
Priscilla E. Fitzgerald as Post Mistress. The staff, in
addition to their usual post office duties, delivered
telegrams and operated the small telephone switch-board
which in 1924 was made a continuous party line to meet
the needs of it’s 56 subscribers.

This building was purchased by Percy Head in 1920 who
used it as a family residence until 1930 when the building
was leased to Frank Hatcher. He operated a grocery store
and established his produce store at the rear of the building.
Returning to a family home in 1946, the building was sold
to a Mr Koller and was then purchased by Russ and Joan
Watson in 1961.

At some time, probably in the 1950’s or 60’s this building
was significantly changed with the removal of the iron
lacework and the application of exterior cement rendering.
The interior remains intact.



15. No. 58 Maitland Rd
c. 1865 Wholesale, Draper, Grocer,
Ironmonger & Produce Merchant.

Joseph Bercani Store c1908

The original rear section of this building was built in
1865.Significant alterations were made in 1881 which
resulted in this Vernacular Style building which is a two-
storey brick shop with wrought iron lacework around the
timber-supported verandah. What we see today is a
sympathetic exterior restoration in 2017 by its most recent
owner.

The business was then listed as ‘Wholesale & Retail’
Draper, Grocer, Ironmonger and Produce Merchant. There
were 3 underground wells at the rear of this building along
with produce sheds and horse stables on the eastern
boundary of the property. Records refer to a small dam on
the property with ducks and turkeys roaming the grounds.

Joseph Bercini operated his business along with the help of
his family until 1914 when although he retained the
freehold, the building was leased to Mr F. Bethell who
continued with the business. Upon the death of Joseph in
1917, the building was purchased by his son, Leo and
leased to various people. The freehold remained with the
Bercini family until it was purchased by Alister & Eileen
Moss in 1974. They replaced the timber floor, which was
at ground level with a 12” raised cement floor and moved
the entrance door to the eastern side of the building.

16. No. 50 Maitland Rd.
1927 The Royal Federal Hotel.
Licenced by brewers Tooheys Ltd.

This Federation Style two-storey brick construction with
parapet was built in 1927. Both the wide upper verandah
and footpath are supported with timber posts. The interior
area facing the street includes a public bar on the eastern
side and originally a Ladies Lounge, on the western side
with a formal dining room. The formal entrance hallway
between these two rooms ran the length of the building to
an area originally known as the beer garden. W. H. Pender
of Maitland designed the building.

The licensee of the building now known as the Branxton
Inn originally held the liquor licence for the Royal Federal
Hotel. A condition of transfer to this later hotel site was the
installation of 10,000-gallon water storage well.

During the time of Ray Dawson’s occupancy the first
opportunity was given to any licensee to purchase the
freehold from the brewery. At that tome the hotel was
owned by Toohey’s and was only allowed to sell that brand
of beer. In 1990 David and Robyn Axsentieff then
purchased from Ray Dawson and made alterations to the
original ‘beer garden’ area.

When Moyle Family Hotels purchased the building in 2008
it was painted, rewired and the balcony stabilised.
Additions to the rear of the hotel took 12 months and were
completed in December 2010.
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